
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Friday 23 November 2018 at 11.00 am 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, TN1 1RS 

 
 

 

Members:  Councillors Heasman (Chairman), Nuttall and Thomson 

Quorum:  3 Members 

 
 

1   Chairman's Introduction   
Announcement on procedural matters.  

2   Apologies for Absence   
Apologies for absence as reported.  

3   Declarations of Interest:   
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda.  For any advice 
on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring Officer.  

4   Report of Head of Environment and Street Scene   

(A)   Determination of an application for a premises licence - The Barn, Flimwell House 
Farm, Flimwell (Pages 3 - 32) 

 
 
Cheryl Clark Town Hall 
Democratic Services Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
cheryl.clark@tunbridgewells.gov.uk Kent   TN1 1RS 
 Tel: (01892) 554413 
 
Notes on Procedure 
 
(1)  A list of background papers appears at the end of each report, where appropriate, pursuant to the 

Local Government Act 1972, section 100D(i). 
  
(2) Members seeking factual information about agenda items are requested to contact the 

appropriate Service Manager prior to the meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 

2 
 
 
 

(3) Please note that this meeting may be recorded or filmed by the Council for administrative 
purposes.  Any other third party may also record or film meetings, unless exempt or confidential 
information is being considered, but are requested as a courtesy to others to give notice of this to 
the Committee Administrator before the meeting.  The Council is not liable for any third party 
recordings. 

 
(4) Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from the Committee 

Section. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 If you require this information in large print, Braille, on 
audiotape or in any other format, please contact us on 01892 
526121 

 

 Accessibility into and within the Town Hall - In response to the 
requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, the Council has 
provided the following features to overcome physical barriers to access.   

 There is a wheelchair accessible lift by the main staircase, giving access to the 
first floor where the committee rooms are situated.  There are a few steps 
leading to the Council Chamber itself but there is a platform chairlift in the foyer. 

 

 Hearing Loop System - The Council Chamber and all the Committee Rooms 
have been equipped with hearing induction loop systems.  The Council 
Chamber also has a fully equipped audio-visual system. 

 

Page 2

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/


 

Licensing Sub-Committee 23 November 2018  

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Determination of an application for a premises 
licence – The Barn, Flimwell House Farm, 
Flimwell 

 

Final Decision-Maker Licensing Sub-Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  Councillor Dr Ronen Basu 

Lead Director  Paul Taylor, Director of Change and Communities 

Head of Service Gary Stevenson, Head of Housing, Health & Environment 

Lead Officer/Author David Packham, Licensing Officer 

Classification Non-exempt 

Wards affected Goudhurst and Lamberhurst 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. That Members determine the application and take such steps as the Sub-Committee 
consider necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, giving appropriate 
weight to: 

 The merits of the application; 

 The representations and supporting information presented by all parties; 

 The Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003; 

 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

Recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our 
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging 
innovation and supporting responsible premises. 

 A Confident Borough 

By providing a regulatory framework for alcohol and entertainment licensing which 
reflects the needs of local communities and empowers the Authority to make and 
enforce decisions about the most appropriate licensing strategies for the local area. 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Licensing Sub-Committee 23 November 2018 
Tunbridge Wells Committee Report, version: January 2018 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4(A)



 

Determination of an application for a premises 
licence – The Barn, Flimwell House Farm, 
Flimwell 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out details of an application for a premises licence. 

1.2 In accordance with the provisions of Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 the 
licensing authority must hold a hearing to determine an application for a 
premises licence if relevant representations are made. 

1.3 A representation is relevant if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the 
licence on the promotion of at least one of the four licensing objectives.  In other 
words, a representation should relate to the impact of licensable activities 
carried on at the premises on the objectives.  

1.4 However, the Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 recommends that: “In borderline cases, the benefit of the 
doubt about any aspect of a representation should be given to the person 
making that representation.  The subsequent hearing would then provide an 
opportunity for the person or body making the representation to amplify and 
clarify it.”  

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 On 14 September 2018, an online application made under the provisions of 

section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 was received for a new premises licence at 
The Barn, Flimwell House Farm, London Road, Flimwell.  The application was 
made by Cellar Head Brewing Company Ltd.  A copy of the application form 
together with the site plans is attached at Appendix A. 

2.2 In accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 
licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005, a public notice was 
displayed at the premises for a period of 28 consecutive days and a notice 
placed in a local newspaper with the closing date for representations being 26 
October 2018. 

2.3 During the 28 day public consultation period a responsible authority or other 
person may make representations about the likely effect of the grant of the 
application on the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives, which 
are:- 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 

 Prevention of public nuisance 

 Public safety 

 Protection of children from harm 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4(A)



 

2.4 If representations are received a hearing must be held to determine the 
application, providing that the grounds for the representation are relevant to the 
promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives and are not vexatious, 
frivolous or repetitive. 

2.5 The application seeks authorisation for the licensable activity Sale or Supply of 
Alcohol for consumption both on and off the premises, shown at section M of 
the application form as: 

 Monday to Wednesday    07:30 – 17:30 

 Thursday    07:30 – 18:30  

 Friday and Saturday   07:30 – 20:00 
   
2.6 However, further clarification provided by the applicant indicates that the times 

authorisation is sought for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises 
are different to the times authorisation is sought for the sale of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises and are as follows: 
 
Consumption off the premises: 

 Monday to Friday   07:30 – 17:30  
 

Consumption on the premises: 

 Thursday    12:00 – 18:30 

 Friday and Saturday   12:00 – 20:00 
 

2.7 The hours the premises are open to the public: 

 Monday to Wednesday    07:30 – 17:30 

 Thursday    07:30 – 18:30  

 Friday and Saturday   07:30 – 20:00 
 

2.8 A relevant representation objecting to the application for a premises licence was 
received from other persons, Mr and Mrs B. Coles based on one or more of the 
licensing objectives.  A copy of the representation is attached at Appendix B. 

2.9 Members are requested to note that the representation makes significant 
reference to planning consent and planning categories but these matters cannot 
be considered when determining an application for a premises licence.   

2.10 The Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Home Office under Section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 advises that decisions made in accordance with 
the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 must not replicate or seek to enforce 
the statutory provisions of other legislation.  

2.11 Moreover, it is imperative that the licensing authority ensures that the factors 
which form the basis of its determination are limited to consideration of the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and nothing outside those parameters.  

2.12 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to 
what it is intended to achieve. 

2.13 No other relevant representations were received from responsible authorities or 
other persons within the 28 day consultation period prescribed by the Act. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4(A)



 

2.14 Following the closure of the statutory consultation period I contacted both the 
applicant and Mrs Coles by email to offer mediation, in line with best practice.  
The offer was accepted by Mr Chris McKenzie, founder and Company Director 
Cellar Head Brewing Company Ltd. but Mrs Coles considered a mediation 
meeting would be of no benefit.  

 

3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 Grant the licence subject to such conditions as are consistent with the operating 

schedule accompanying the application modified to such extent as the licensing 
authority considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
any conditions which must under section 19, 20 or 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 
be included in the licence; the mandatory conditions. 

3.2 Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 
the application relates. 

3.3 Refuse to specify the person named in the application as the Designated 
Premises Supervisor.  

3.4 Refuse the application. 
 

 
PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.5 That Members determine the application, and take such steps as the Sub-

Committee consider necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
giving appropriate weight to: 

 The merits of the application; 

 The representations and supporting information presented by all parties; 

 The Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003; 

 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

3.6 For Members information if considering attaching conditions to a premises 
licence, paragraph 1.16  of the Guidance issued by the Home Office under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states:   

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in 
setting the parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of 
wording such as “must”, “shall” and “will”, is encouraged. Licence conditions: 

 must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

 must be precise and enforceable; 

 must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

 should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or 
responsibilities placed on the employer by other legislation; 

 must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned; 

 should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be 
demonstrated that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case; 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4(A)



 

 should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation; 

 should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met, (for 
example, whilst beer glasses may be available in toughened glass, wine 
glasses may not);  

 cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond 
the direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but may 
impact on the behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of the 
premises or as they enter or leave; and 

 should be written in a prescriptive format 
 
3.7  Paragraph 9.44 of the Guidance further advises that the authority should aim to 

consider the potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence 
holder (such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well 
as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

 
4. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
4.1 Other than the statutory consultation described in Part 2 of the report above, no 

other consultation is required by the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

 
5. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 
5.1 The Chairman will announce the Sub-Committee’s decision prior to the 

conclusion of the hearing.   

5.2 The applicant, any person who made relevant representations and the chief 
officer of police will subsequently receive written confirmation of the decision.  

 
5.3 A copy of the Decision Notice will be placed on the Council’s website. 

 

5.4 In accordance with the provisions of Section 181 and Schedule 5, Licensing Act 
2003 the applicant and any person who made a relevant representation has a 
right to appeal the decision made by the Licensing Authority.  The appeal must 
be made to the Magistrates’ Court within a period of twenty-one days from the 
date on which the appellant receives notification of the decision from the 
licensing authority.  

 

 
6. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

Licensing Act  2003 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 at section 4(1) requires 
the Licensing Authority to carry out its functions 
with a view to promoting the Licensing 
Objectives which Section 4(2) sets out as:- 

a) The prevention of crime and disorder 

Robin Harris 

Senior Lawyer – 
Contentious 

07/11/2018 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4(A)



 

b) Public safety 
c) The prevention of public nuisance 
d) The protection of children from harm 

 
The Sub-committee is permitted under Section 
18(4) of the Licensing Act 2003, having had 
regard to relevant representations, to take such 
steps, as it considers necessary, for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Section 35(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states 
‘where relevant representations are made, the 
authority must:- 
 

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, 
unless the authority, the applicant 
and each person who has made such 
representations agree that a hearing 
is unnecessary, and  
 

(b) having regard to the representations, 
take such of the steps mentioned in 
subsection (4) (if any) as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  

 
Section 4(3) of the Licensing Act also requires 
the Licensing Authority to have regard to the 
published statement of the Licensing Policy and 
any guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182 
 
Each application that comes before the Sub-
Committee must be treated on its own merits, 
and the Sub-Committee must take its decision 
based upon: 
 

a) The merits of the application 
b) The promotion of the four licensing 

objectives 
c) The policy of the Licensing Authority 
d) The Guidance issued under Section 182 

of the Licensing Act 2003 
e) All valid representations made 

 
Whilst the applicant, responsible authorities or 
persons making representations all have a right 
of appeal to the Magistrates Court dependant on 
the decision of the Sub Committee, the decision 
made takes immediate effect. 

 

Human Rights Act 

Article 1 of the First Protocol is concerned with 
the protection of property and provides that 
every person is entitled to peaceful enjoyment of 
his possessions. The term ‘possessions’ is given 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4(A)



 

a broad definition and includes a licence.  

 

Article 8 is concerned with the right to respect 
for private and family life. It states that Everyone 
has the right to respect for his private and family 
life, his home and his correspondence. There 
shall be no interference by a public authority 
with the exercise of this right except such as is 
in accordance with the law and is necessary in a 
democratic society in the interests of national 
security, public safety or the economic well-
being of the country, for the prevention of 
disorder or crime, for the protection of health or 
morals, or for the protection of the rights and 
freedoms of others. The Council has had the 
proper regard for Article 8. 

 

Article 6 relates to the right to a fair hearing. The 
applicant has seen this report prior to this 
hearing and is aware of the reason why the Sub-
Committee is considering this application. 

Finance and 
other resources 

No implications  David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

Staffing 
establishment 

No implications David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

Risk 
management   

No implications  David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

Data Protection No implications David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

Environment  
and sustainability 

No implications  David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

Community 
safety 

 

If the application is granted, the extra services 
offered are not unique to Tunbridge Wells.  
 
Kent Police have not made a representation 
objecting to the application. Nevertheless, the 
following duty is placed on the licensing 
authority by Section 17, Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 
“17(1) Without prejudice to any other obligation 
imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each 
authority to which this section applies to 
exercise its various functions with due regard to 
the likely effect of the exercise of those functions 
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can 

Terry Hughes, 

Community Safety 
Manager 

08/11/2018 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4(A)



 

to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.”  

Health and 
Safety 

No implications David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

Health and 
wellbeing 

Environmental Health made a representation 
objecting to the application but subsequently 
withdrew the representation 

David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

Equalities The decisions recommended through this paper 
have a remote or low relevance to the substance 
of the Equality Act. There is no apparent 
equality impact on end users.   

David Packham 
Report Author 

07/11/2018 

 
7. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report: 

 Appendix A:  Application form and plans 

 Appendix B:  Representation made by other persons 
 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachme
nt_data/file/702660/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_
Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf 
 
TWBC Statement of Licensing Policy 
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/69878/03.05.17-Ratified-
Statement-of-Licensing-Policy-2015-v2-word-version.pdf 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4(A)

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/702660/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/702660/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/702660/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/69878/03.05.17-Ratified-Statement-of-Licensing-Policy-2015-v2-word-version.pdf
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/69878/03.05.17-Ratified-Statement-of-Licensing-Policy-2015-v2-word-version.pdf


Page 11

Appendix A



Page 12

Appendix A



Page 13

Appendix A



Page 14

Appendix A



Page 15

Appendix A



Page 16

Appendix A



Page 17

Appendix A



Page 18

Appendix A



Page 19

Appendix A



Page 20

Appendix A



Page 21

Appendix A



Page 22

Appendix A



Page 23

Appendix A



Page 24

Appendix A



From:                                 Noreen Coles
Sent:                                  25 Oct 2018 11:56:11 +0000
To:                                      Licensing
Subject:                             THE BARN, FLIMWELL - 18/03343/LAPRE

Dear Sirs,

I am writing to object to Licence Application Number 18/03343 on the following 
grounds, with respect to:-

Public Safety

Since the microbrewery only occupies half of the site (half of the barn area), you have a 
situation whereby there are numerous vehicles including large agricultural type vehicles 
i.e.  transporting grain, delivery vehicles, tractor etc, operating in the yard of this barn.  
When you then introduce a drinks licence enabling members of the public to drink at 
this same site, which is not designed specifically for use by the public, I believe that 
there is a real risk to public safety from such vehicles moving around within such a 
small yard.   There is a full sized tractor on this site (as half the barn remains agricultural 
for farming purposes).   If you then consider that some members of the public may 
become intoxicated, they are then at increased risk from being hit by one of these 
vehicles as they could be less-alert to the situation around them.   Small and young 
children, taken to the site by their parents, would be especially at risk as many of these 
type of vehicles would have poor sight vision given their height and size and could hit a 
small child or an adult.  This would pose a greater risk during winter months when it 
gets dark around 4pm, at a time when the microbrewery would still be in full-swing as it 
trades until 5.30pm and when visibility would be worse.

Further, there is a public footpath that runs along one side of he perimeter of the 
premises which is regularly used by walkers, and often elderly people and young 
children.  Their safety should be considered given that people will be consuming alcohol 
and perhaps causing a nuisance in various ways and driving vehicles in and out of the 
yard past the the times that the microbrewery will be closed.

This is an unusual site for a drinks licence as it is unnatural to have a brewery serving 
alcohol from a barn (constructed for use as storage of farm equipment including 
tractor(s)  in one half and a farm useage in the other half of the barn).  I think special 
consideration should be given to the uncommon problems that this combination 
produces in relation to safety issues.

Given that the public will be inside the barn, I think it right that the possibility of 
asbestos in the building be considered for public safety - given that the barn has a full 
corregated roof etc and was erected (without planning permission or building 
regulations) pre the year 2000 purely for agricultural purposes including the storage of a 
tractor (and later a granary which could pose further safety issues) when it was 

Page 25

Appendix B



commonplace to find asbestos in these typical agricultural farm buildings.  I do not 
believe that the council have yet taken this point into account with regard to public 
safety and perhaps this is an area that Licencing would need to consider.

The nature of the lane at Pillory Corner consists of seven private dwellings.  It is a very 
quiet and peaceful lane.  This road is short but poses a number of  dangers to drivers 
who are unfamiliar with the lane.   This is less the case during day time hours, but 
should a licence encourage drivers into the lane at night-time/during darkness hours, 
the dangers become more real.     The road system within the lane was intended to 
restrict the number of cars using it, for safety reasons and this is why half the lane has 
been blocked off ( in width where it narrows from two lanes to one) to prevent vehicles 
other than those with access to property to use it. 

Very importantly, the official speed limit in this lane is 60mph!!!since it remains part of 
the A21 as the lane has never been de-trunked by the Highways Agency.   Other than 
residents, only occasional cars pass through the barrier restriction and they often speed 
up the lane.  Few cars using this lane works well.  However, problems are brought about 
by speeding drivers who enter through the restricted barrier and rejoin the main 
carriageway at the north end of the lane.  Recently, two dogs from one of the houses 
were hit and killed at night-time by a speeding car.

Deer are very common throughout the year in this lane and immediate surrounding 
area.  We have always had deer in our garden and usually groups of deer as opposed to 
just one.  Members of the public drinking at the barn and then driving out onto the lane 
would not expect to encounter deer on the road but this does happen.  As this is a 
60mph road, hitting a deer at this speed, could prove fatal.  It would be more unsual to 
see deer during the main daytime hours (more so from around 6am until 7.30am but 
more common at dusk and after dusk).

There has never been street lighting in this lane.  The lane is within an area designated 
as Outstanding Natural Beauty.  The lane was designed by Highways Agency for little use 
by vehicles.  At night, you cannot see your hand in front of your face, if you walk in the 
lane.  It would be easy to lose your footing and fall on the road if walking at night along 
the lane with no lighting.  If a drinks licence is granted, this would absolutely result in a 
large number of cars using this lane, having visited the Barn, for drinking purposes.  
Should this be the case, I would advise Licensing Department that this would pose a very 
real danger to people walking in the lane when it is dark.    Beyond Pillory Corner to the 
North, TJ Motel houses a large number of "vulnerable" people, including families with 
children, who are regularly homed there by Sussex council (having found themselves 
homeless), amongst others.    

Since a number of these people/families do not own cars, they have to walk south from 
TJ Motel, down our lane and beyond Flimwell lights for transport i.e. buses and to walk 
into Hawkhurst to the supermarkets etc. that are there.  Many families can be seen 

Page 26

Appendix B



walking buggies at both daylight hours and nightime hours with very young children.  
The point about this is two-fold.  These residents need to be kept safe.  There is no 
footpath along the entirity of our lane, although for many years the introduction of a 
footpath has been talked about by Highways (but it comes down to lack of funds).  
There is a footpath at the south of our lane which runs all the way down to the Flimwell 
lights.  Likewise there is a sectioned off area of the A21, which keeps walkers safe 
including people who have to walk from TJ Motel south towards our lane.  Therefore it 
is just this 60mph section of the A21 that is without safety for walkers.   Should a 
drinking licence be issued, these pedestrians (and night time cyclists) would be at risk of 
being hit by fast moving vehicles and vehicles driving out onto the lane from the Barn.   
Naturally, residents drive very slowly and  carefully at all times in this lane due to the 
dangers that we are all aware of.

Members of the public who do not have a car, or choose to leave it at home so that they 
can drink and walk home, will have to navigate walking along the lane in either direction 
to reach their homes.  This would pose a very real danger.  Should an adult, or young 
person be hit by a car on the lane, in darkness, it would not be unusual for that person 
not to be found until daylight hours.  There is also a ditch that runs along part of the 
lane.  Likewise, there is a risk to the residents' safety in this lane, including children from 
any intoxicated drivers who consume alcohol at the barn at night-time, thinking that 
they can take advantage of a dark, unobserved lane, unlike a public house, where 
people can clearly be seen by other member of the public if they are intoxicated and 
shouldn't drive.

Speeding motorists along the A21 are common.  In May/June of this year, four Highways 
Agency Workmen were almost killed when a speeding motorist was drunk and crashed 
through barriers at the junction of our lane and the carriageway.  Speed combined with 
unfamiliar drivers in this lane (combined with alcohol consumption) could likely cause a 
very real risk to life.  The Highways Agency workmen just missed being hit by the 
vehicle and could have easily been killed (by inches) and that part of the A21 had 
lighting from their safety equipment in place.  The lane has no such lighting.

Residents safety is also likely to be affected - not only from the danger of speeding cars 
but also the possibility of drink-drivers leaving the barn and driving up or down the 
lane. 

Safety in residents homes and home security will be put at risk from drivers being 
encouraged into the lane who will be "checking out" the microbrewery drinking facilities 
(but may also have other agendas relating to criminal acts).  Given that this brewery 
have demonstrated that their intention is to bring general traffic off of the carriageway 
into this lane - demonstrated by the illegal signage that it has put on the side of the 
main carriageway telling road users that a tap room will "be coming soon".  Basically this 
will bring attention to this lane by rogue drivers who would otherwise have no 
knowledge of this lane existing (and the houses within in).

Page 27

Appendix B



In summary of the above, the lane poses very real dangers at night-time due to no 
lighting and no footpath for pedestrian safety.
Also, the land on which the barn is built, falls away dramatically at the North side of 
the barn and this could pose a danger to the public, who would undoubtedly walk 
(sometimes intoxicated) outside of the barn and could fall into an open body of water 
(which forms part of the natural water feed for Bewl Water).  Children would be 
especially at risk.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Although public nuisance has only just started in a small way, in relation to this barn, 
(with regard to parking and double-parking of vehicles on the lane) which already takes 
place and contravenes the legal signage at the south end of the lane, it is clear that 
"nuisance" will arise.  The illegal parking that has already taken place (even before the 
microbrewery commences trading), poses a risk as it could obstruct emergency vehicles 
from getting through and this would include vehicles being unable to get to the barn 
itself, if ever needed for example, an emergency ambulance.  

This type of nuisance together with noise nuisance and movement of cars (and 
littering) will be worse for residents at night-time.

There is a private detached house just meters away from the farm building and, 
although the house is currently vacant (in the process of being sold), it will be greatly 
affected by noise as will other neighbouring properties.  One buyer pulled out of the 
purchase due to his worry about noise and general nuisance from the barn particulary 
night-time nuisance.  Activities beyond 5.30pm at the barn, most particularly from the 
sale of alcohol will undoubtedly cause "nuisance".  Residents anticipate this will be 
from noise from vehicle movement, noise from the public if they are allowed to drink on 
the site after 5.30pm into the evening.  

Litter nuisance will also likely occur from public use of the lane, particularly at night and 
also particularly from people who may be intoxicated.  These vehicles may likely leave 
the barn and park up in the lane, and then litter by throwing items out of their cars.
 
Any member of  the public who has been drinking on the site, will quite likely either 
need to walk along the lane to get home, (having left their cars at home to avoid drink 
driving), and these pedestrians will be at risk from being hit by vehicles in an un-lit lane 
with no footpath.

The potential for men drinking at the barn and then walking along the lane - finding a 
need to "relieve" themselves.  Not an obvious problem perhaps, but one that will 
undoubtedly occur.  This is not so likely to happen during the day and particularly public 
toilets are available until dusk (at the picnic area car-park).

Page 28

Appendix B



The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Although I can offer no proof of crime and disorder occurring, the Licensing Authority 
will be aware that Crime and Disorder naturally follow when premises are granted a 
drinks licence.   Undoubtedly, should a licence be granted for hours beyond 5.30pm 
when the microbrewery closes, this will become a problem to residents and police 
alike.  Avoidance of crime and Disorder would best be avoided by not granting any 
drinking licence past 5.30pm.

The Prevention of Children From Harm
Please take into account the location of this lane in relation to the main carriageway.  
The lane is hidden from view.  Anyone that walks or cycles down this lane is in a black 
spot for safety purposes.  By safety purposes I refer to both danger from cars and 
dangers from crime incident.  As mentioned above, pedestrians including children do 
use this lane.  At the moment, this lane is predominantly used by residents from seven 
properties.  It is unusual to see any cars in the lane either driving or parked, at night-
time.  I believe the reason for this is simply that people have no reason to be in this lane 
at night-time unless there is a questionable reason for them to be there.  Basically, not 
many people know or use this lane.  However, if a licence is granted for night-time 
drinking at the barn, this whole pattern of who is in the lane at night will change.  

I have had experience of observing a young boy of approx. 11 years old walking up and 
down our lane going to school and back.  I saw him walking back from school in the dark 
when he was returning home to TJ Motel.  I rang the council, social services to ask that 
they make enquires and ensure that the boy receive help with travel and suggested that 
if he was from a vulnerable family who had been housed at TJ Motel he should be 
entitled to a taxi to and from school for his own safe-guarding.  Two days later, the boy 
no longer walked to and from school via this lane at Pillory Corner.  Should the barn be 
granted a licence for night-time hours, beyond 5.30pm, children such as this, could be at 
risk both from the danger of being hit by vehicles or worse.  Should a minor be in the 
lane for some reason, during fall of darkness, they could encounter someone who is 
intoxicated which could be frightening for them or worse.  If a scenario such as this did 
happen, any events would be hidden from view.

There could be a higher risk of under-aged drinking as the premises do not conform to 
pub standards in that these premises are very hidden from view and pubs are more 
experienced at dealing with problems of under-aged drinking.  

There is a danger that these premises which are still designated 50% for agricultural use 
could become an "abnormal drinking hole" for all and sundry.  Although there may be 
some respectable well behaved genuine customers, there is the worrying likelihood that 
the premises could become a real problem by attracting unsavoury characters and 
passing trade to this immediate area, especially if a Licence were to allow alcohol to be 
served at night-times as opposed to daytime hours.

Page 29

Appendix B



Police have been called out a number of times on different matters (over the years) 
whether from cars parking in the lane for no "good reason" who have been moved on 
by the police and from activities in the picnic area carpark which had to be dealt with by 
the police.  However, if drinking at night-time is allowed under a licence, the police call 
out numbers will undoubtedly be increased.  Although the police may not have raised 
any objections to this licence this is likely to be because the police who  may have been 
contacted are not familiar with this actual lane at Pillory Corner, with its potential to 
become a problem spot, due to the presence of a microbrewery with tap room.

Generally, and most importantly, I believe that the hours requested for this Licence far 
exceed acceptable limits, especially given that this is a quiet rural residential lane.  

The hours requested in this application amount to 53 1/2 hours a week!  This is not 
acceptable in such a residential area and one which is in an Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty.  Encouraging late night drinking in this lane would be irresponsible on the part 
of the Licensing Department at Tunbridge Wells Council.

Any Alcohol Licence should be restricted to no later than 5.30pm during weekdays and 
no later than 5.30pm on a Saturday.  

Further, I would refer you to the Application Form submitted by this applicant since I 
understand that it is an offence to provide incorrect information on such a form.

Firstly, I would query the square footage request for A4 Licence.  As you will see from 
the block plan, the interior area designated for use by the occupation of the 
microbrewery is stated as 441 sq. metres.  However, this square footage does not take 
into account the additional area marked on the block plan (by the applicant) of an A4 
area measuring 6200 x 6000.  Therefore, I would presume that this figure of 441 square 
meters is either incorrect or if it is correct, then the outside area of 6200 x 6000 should 
be disallowed for licensing purposes?   Especially as it should be considered by Licensing 
as a request by the applicant of both inside and outside drinking areas.  Obviously, 
outside drinking areas would have a higher nuisance risk for residents due to noise and 
general nuisance.

The block plan submitted is incorrect since it shows the internal area as having B2 
planning with a section designated as A4.  This is incorrect since please note that the 
planning permission that has been granted to the microbrewery (18/02026) is Sui 
generis with A4.  Therefore although you do not take planning into consideration (as 
such), once you are made aware that the outside area has no planning permission as it 
exceeds the 440 sq metre area, this outside area should be excluded from any Licence 
that might be issued by you particularly since the statements made on the form have to 
be correct in all regards, in order for you to accept and process the application as is.

Page 30

Appendix B



The hours of opening are stated as being "relevant to this proposal". However, please 
note that these hours are not a true account of existing or approved opening hours as 
these requested hours are still the subject of an undecided planning permission with 
Tunbridge Wells Planning Office.

Finally, with regard to the application form, the applicant states that as per planning 
application 18/02026, the microbrewery has been given B2 and A4 use.  Again this is 
incorrect as the microbrewery has Sui generis/A4 use.  I understand that it is usually 
necessary for premises to have B2 use in order to obtain a Licence under A4.

I strongly oppose the hours applied for under this Licence Application, for all of the 
above reasons.

Yours faithfully, 
Mr and Mrs. B. Coles
Flimwell Grange, Flimwell,  TN5 7QG

 

 

Page 31

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4(A) Determination of an application for a premises licence - The Barn, Flimwell House Farm, Flimwell
	Appendix A
	Appendix B




